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Rowans Hospice will celebrate the 25th 
Anniversary of its opening in October 2019.  
As our Silver Jubilee approaches, I am 
pleased to report another highly successful 
year during which we have again provided 
high quality care for people with life-limiting 
illnesses. We have cared for and supported 
those who have needed our help including 
family members, carers and friends, 
throughout illness and into bereavement.
As I look back on the last 25 years, it is clear that we 
have only been able to achieve the high quality care 
we have delivered through our dedicated teams of 
skilled and experienced staff, and volunteers who are 
recruited, trained and developed within the charity. 
They enable us to help people to live well for as long as 
this may be possible. I am grateful to them all, past and 
present, for their commitment to Rowans Hospice.

Collectively our staff and volunteers are an ‘Outstanding’ 
team. This was confirmed by the Care Quality 
Commission in August 2017 when they gave Rowans 
Hospice the highest rating possible. This achievement, 
alongside numerous letters of thanks and the generosity 
of our community offer the Board of Trustees confidence 
in knowing that the Rowans Hospice Charity is delivering 
the highest quality patient and family centered care.

As well as providing vital income, our shops increasingly 
promote our services to our community and provide 
employment and development opportunities for our 
retail staff and volunteers. There are exciting plans in 
place to further develop Hospice Retail by increasing the 
number of shops to 25 during our 25th anniversary year.

Our Strategic Priorities for the  
period 2018 – 2022 are to:
1. Extend our reach and enable hospice quality care to 

be delivered in any setting

2. Tackle inequality and widen access to hospice care

3. Work with communities to build capacity and 
resilience to care for those at the end of life

4. Continue to develop the Rowans Hospice Charity to 
remain strong, dynamic and responsive to the needs 
of more with a life-limiting illness

Highlights of our achievements towards these priorities 
during this year include:

Priorities 1 and 3
These have been achieved by the further development 
of Hospice at Home and increased delivery of training 
programmes into nursing homes. Both help people to 
access hospice care without needing to be in-patients 
or attend Rowans Living Well Centre. This approach 
has enabled more people to be cared for in their own 
home and supports our NHS and care sector colleagues 
by providing additional support, specialist skills and 
knowledge as required. The approach of working 
alongside others helps us to positively influence the 
care people receive towards the end of their lives, 
prevents unnecessary hospital admissions and enables 
more people to die peacefully at home, in their own 
surroundings and close to family and friends.

Priority 2 
From January 2019 our traditional Day Care Service, 
merged with Rowans Living Well Centre. This 
development has enabled more people to access the 
many therapies available through the Living Well Centre, 
and made it possible to care for people with a greater 
level of disability throughout the working week.

Priority 4
In October 2018 we launched our Silver Jubilee Appeal 
to mark our 25th Anniversary. We aim to raise £7.5 
million to refurbish and extend our hospice facilities, 
focusing on our patient care areas. The programme will 
ensure durability and sustainability as well as meeting 
environmental considerations. As a result, maintenance 
and costs will be reduced and Rowans Hospice future 
proofed for the next 25 years. 

Without the interest, help and support of our local 
community none of this would be possible, and I thank 
all our supporters.

Elizabeth Emms

Honorary Chairman of Trustees
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The development of services to reach 
out to more people who are living with 
life-limiting and serious illnesses has had 
a significant impact when measuring the 
number of people who have accessed 
support from Rowans Living Well Centre, 
established in October 2016. 
Most significantly, there has been a marked increase in 
the number of carers accessing the Centre. These are  
people who are seeking information, advice, reassurance 
and therapeutic support when providing part-time or 
full-time care to family members or friends.

It is heart-warming to think that the array of 
complementary therapies, mindfulness practice and 
other therapeutic activities delivered through Rowans 
Living Well Centre, are now supporting many new 
people who previously had very little direct support. 

The new Charitable Objects, updated in 2018, 
now expand upon ‘terminal illness’ to those who 
are chronically sick and to those who are frail, as 
encompassed in the new charitable objects:

“The relief of sickness, suffering and distress of persons 
with a terminal illness, progressive chronic illness and 
increasing or irreversible frailty”

Now Rowans Living Well Centre has opened up access 
to so many more people who would not have previously 
been supported by hospice care.

Therapies are offered within a beautiful purpose 
built facility with contemporary features and modern 
architecture, all of which has been made possible 
through charitable donations. Although the success of 
the Centre is more than a building the beautiful new 
environment does make a positive difference. 

This has since been our focus when looking at the 
aesthetics of the original Hospice building, which was 
built in 1994.

Although comfortable and facilitating exemplary care,  
the environment, cries out for a ‘refresh’. As services 
have expanded, staff and volunteers have increased and 
now the original hospice site requires an upgrade, to 
develop the site in order to provide hospice care for the 
next 25 years. 

Although our focus remains community centric, providing 
care for people within their own homes is not always 
appropriate and the sanctuary of the in-patient unit 
is required. A sanctuary that is not only aesthetically 
pleasing but offers access to specialist clinicians when 
patients experience the most complex symptoms 
and when generic health professionals are unable to 
adequately support due to constraints of time or skill. 

Our focus therefore, as we move forward into 2019, will 
be to refurbish the in-patient unit and design further 
facilities to provide new therapeutic environments for 
bereaved adults and for children and young people 
facing and experiencing bereavement. These will take 
the form of therapeutic suites for those who require 
individual and family therapy in discrete environments 
away from the ‘therapeutic hubbub’ of Rowans Living 
Well Centre and the in-patient unit.

This is a very exciting period 
for Rowans Hospice and as you 
will see from this Annual Report 
we are now ready to build upon 
the strong foundations of the 
last 25 years to build a hospice 
facility for the future.

Ruth White

Chief Executive

Chief Executive’s Statement
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Therapeutic Day Services
Rowans Living Well Centre

David Tull, from Waterlooville, shares 
why he went to Rowans Living Well 
Centre and how it helped him.
“We found out about the Living Well Centre 
through a friend. I just thought it was for 
cancer patients, I didn’t realise anyone with 
life shortening illnesses could walk in and seek 
advice. 

For a long time I have suffered a series of 
illnesses, strokes, cancer, major surgery and 
rheumatoid arthritis. It all began to feel like 
one big struggle after trying to recover from 
a major fall, I was in a bad state. So my wife 
dragged me to the Living Well Centre to see 
what support was available. 

I initially attended all the sessions of ‘Living 
better, living well programme’ covering 
different activities. I hated anything to do with 
exercise before I came but the great thing 
about here is that it’s not like being shuffled 
into a room and going through the exercises, 
personality comes into it. The physiotherapists 
Maggie and Louise, really inspired me. We also 
had a session on Mindfulness which made a 
tremendous impression on me and has been 
more than valuable, making me focus on the 

present. These sessions really set me in a better 
place and inspired me to do things. 

There are so many amazing opportunities on offer 
here. I have enjoyed the nutrition course and range 
of complimentary therapy treatments. I even taken 
part on the Creative Writing course, which was 
fascinating. For a man who hated exercise, I now go 
willingly to a chair-based exercise class. 

I have even fulfilled a lifelong wish to learn about 
the Harp through Rowans. It is something I wanted 
to do ever since being on a cruise that had a 
Harpist. She played every evening and I used to 
watch and listen to the beautiful music. The gentle 
movement of it absolutely fascinated me. So I 
couldn’t really believe that Rowans ran Harp Taster 
Sessions. 

I want people to know how wonderful this place is. 
It is more than the support you get, it’s the warm 
welcome, it’s the whole ambiance of the place and 
the attitude of the staff. There is always someone 
to talk to you about anything you have on your 
mind. Rowans Living Well Centre is the best place 
possible to come if you or a loved one is facing life 
limiting illnesses because they will do everything 
they can to help you. I can say this with all sincerity, 
as for me it’s been true.

The Rowans Living Well Centre is a drop-in 
centre providing support, therapies and group 
activities for anyone living with a life-limiting 
illness in the community, including the family 
and carers. We also provide support and group 
activities for those who have been bereaved. 

We recently brought our day care services across 
from the hospice so that all provision was under 
one roof and being delivered in an environment that 
is not always seen as the ‘hospice’. This has allowed 
us to be more efficient and to deliver more care 
with our resources of both staff and volunteers. 

Our Centre Manager and the Rowans 
Ambassadors have been instrumental in our 
community engagement programme. This has 
played a key part in the growing numbers of 
people accessing the centre throughout the year. 
We have needed, and will continue to expand 
our programme so we can accommodate more 
people when they need us. 

We have a ‘patient user group’ and look to recruit 
with new attendees as we value the discussion 
and opinions from this group immensely. All 
service users are invited to give feedback and 

we have quarterly evaluations. Every month we 
monitor our attendance and record those that are 
new to the Centre and those who are returning.

Through our improved marketing material and 
community engagement we have been able to 
attract more people who need our support at an 
earlier stage of their healthcare journey. We have 
been able to reach out to more organisations and 
create opportunities to have working partnerships 
that benefit our services users. A great example of 
this is the cookery programme for those who have 
been bereaved, working with Havant and South 
Downs College and Kenwood Trust.

Our success and growing participant numbers 
have created challenges that will need creative 
solutions. We have a very busy environment 
where space is becoming a challenge, so we are 
considering extending our opening hours so classes 
and activities can be offered at a later time. To 
accommodate new people to the centre we are 
having to limit regular group attendance, and might 
need to review our attendance criteria in the future.

We are looking to develop new activities such as 
Reiki for both patients and carers, a singing and music 
group, and for those who are bereaved a sewing 
group and a young person’s bereavement group.

The changes we have made to our day services this 
year have been quite dramatic in relation to change 
management and transition, however referrals 
continue to be received. In total we have supported 
6542 people of whom 898 were new to our 
services.

307  

Patients 
(making 3019  
visits)

3117  

Carers 
(of these 591 
were new to 
service)

6542 
Total over all Visits 
Patient/ Carer/ Visitors 

“ I didn’t realise anyone with 
life shortening illnesses could 
walk in and seek advice.”

(53% growth on last year)
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In-Patient Care
Our inpatient unit offers specialist 
end of life care for patients living in 
Portsmouth and South East Hampshire. 
We accept admissions 7 days a 
week with 24/7 nursing and medical 
care. Patients can be admitted for 
specialised symptom management and 
development of personalised care plans. 
We can offer specialist rehabilitation 
and psychological support, with support 
for the carer and support patients in 
their last days of life.
We plan our workforce to provide a safely staffed, 
stable environment. Our staff receive training to 
provide specialised nursing, allied health professional 
and medical support. We deliver evidence-based 
practice and consider the key priorities for patients 
and their families when facing the end of their lives.

Our admissions can come from hospital or 
the community. We carefully collect data on 
admission, length of stay and discharge to be able 
to understand our contribution to achieving the 
preferred place of death for each patient, and what 
we can do to improve the service we provide. 

We are very proud to say that we continue to deliver 
an ‘outstanding’ service for our community, and 
looking forward, the challenge will be to maintain 
the quality of service whilst undergoing a significant 
refurbishment.

423 
admissions
an increase of 6% this 
year; on average taking 
32 admissions per 
month.
72% of patients died on 
the unit and 28% were 
discharged

Shelley Taylor talks about her experience: 
“I didn’t know what Rowans Hospice did until last year. 
My mum, Margaret, was only in Rowans for a week 
before she died on 14th November 2017. It is still so 
raw, however I want to share our story as I hope that it 
will encourage people to support our local hospice.

It was just ten weeks from when mum found out she 
had secondary liver cancer to when she passed away. 
It was literally that quick. Luckily she passed her last 
week in Rowans, thanks to the amazing doctor who 
was looking after her on ward C6 who pushed for it to 
happen. 

She was visibly happier when she arrived at Rowans.  
The staff could give her the attention that she needed, 
the hospital were very good, but there is only so much 
they can do. 

One day, when I was sat with her in her room, mum 
actually asked “Do I have to go home?”  

162 
Social Work 
referrals
an average caseload of 
32 clients per month
147 (91%) were for 
discharge planning

“ As we 
switched on 
the lights, my 
mum’s face 
just lit up” 

I replied “Not if you don’t want to”. Mum then looked 
at the nurse and me, and said “Can I stay here and 
die here”. I just said “If that is what you want, Mum 
you can do exactly what you want to do.” 

I would come and sit next to her every day. During 
this time she kept talking about the Christmas tree 
that she had brought in the New Year sales. Finally, 
her best friend, Lesley said “Do you know what, we 
are going to have to put that tree up as she wants to 
see it.” We put it up in her room and as we switched 
on the lights, my mum’s face just lit up. I will never 
forget it. 

I was also able to bring in her dog, Jack. He had 
been her constant companion, so it was important 
they had opportunity to see each other. The day 
before she died Jack jumped up on the bed and 
nudged her hand, as she lay quietly he went up and 
licked her cheek. 

“I am so thankful these things were possible. Mum passed 
away, peacefully, in comfort and I was able to be with her.”

206 
referrals
Solent NHS  
Occupational Therapy
41 ward referrals
165 community referrals

79 
Ward  
referrals 
for Southern Health 
Occupational Therapy
19% of Hampshire patient 
admissions

492 
Spiritual  
Support
267 Introductions to  
patients on the ward
225 Introductions to carers

279
Physiotherapy 
referrals
207 In-patient referrals
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Rowans Hospice at Home (H@H) team 
works alongside NHS services to provide 
specialist end of life care for patients across 
Portsmouth and South East Hampshire  
on a 24/7 basis, 365 days a year. 
The H@H service supports people who are dying who 
want to stay at home where possible; care will also be 
provided to some patients who are waiting admission 
to our inpatient unit or to support when a health crisis 
occurs. Our service can support either rapid or early 
discharge from hospital or the hospice, so that the 
patients are more likely to be able to die at home. If a 
patient has had a lengthy stay in hospital our H@H team 
can support the transition for both patient and family/ 
carer to home or nursing home. 

The benefits that our H@H team provide are early 
intervention that can reduce the stress for the carers 
and family. Our support helps to keep the patient 
more stable, which helps to reduce Out of Hours and 
ambulance calls, and therefore unwanted admissions to 
hospital with our rapid response service to patients in 
their last few days of life.

The H@H service is monitored through activity 
reports. We offer family/ carers and relatives a service 
questionnaire where they can tell us how we have 
performed and we keep a record of compliments as part 
of our evaluation process. We are happy to report that 
we are increasing our H@H workforce. This has enabled 
us to meet families earlier in their end of life journey, 
helping people to feel well supported, resulting in less 
stress and fewer crises. 

Alanis Sword talks about her experience:
“I have got a picture of me, my mum and my grandad 
doing the Moonlit Memories Walk. It was when I was in 
school so roughly 10 years ago. My mum, Micala, always 
supported the Rowans even though she had never used 
them, but because it was local charity. However I now 
make sure I do the walk every year because of what 
Rowans Hospice at Home Team did for us as a family. 

In January 2016 we found out that mum’s brain tumour 
had grown back and by February we knew no further 
treatment was available. It was now, just a matter of time. 

Mum knew she wanted to be at home when she died, 
surrounded by her family. Her wish was made possible 
by Rowans Hospice at Home team. They were amazing; 
they made sure it wasn’t just my mum that was OK, they 
literally looked after the whole family. Providing a constant 
support to all of us, day and night. 

As well as caring for her professionally, because they were 
so down to earth and bubbly, for mum it was more like 
having friends with her. They treated her as a human, with 
dignity and respect even after she had passed away.

Hospice  
at Home

“ It really felt 
like we had 
been given 
the best of 
both worlds”

It was on April 28th 2016 when my mum passed away. 
Mum had her mum and dad, my dad, all of us three 
children in the room and my brother’s fiancée with her. 
This is exactly what she wanted. Whilst we had peace of 
mind knowing that the Hospice at Home nurses in next 
room, ready to support us as soon as we asked. 

I am sure the support of the Hospice at Home team 
meant mum felt more relaxed. She knew we were all going 
to be OK, because the support received from the Rowans 
assured her that we would all get the support we needed 
afterwards and we have. 

Thanks to Rowans, what could have been a bad 
experience wasn’t. That is why every year I will continue 
to make a dedication at the Lake of Lights and take part in 
the Moonlight Walk, to remember my mum, to show my 
thanks this amazing bunch of workers and give back to 
this amazing charity. 

Our social work service supports 
patients and families to make informed 
choices regarding discharge to their 
preferred place of care. The options may 
involve returning home with a package 
of care or moving to a nursing home 
setting. Through timely and holistic 
assessment, the team guide patients, 
families and carers through the choices 
available to them. 
Our team are able to give advice around finance and 
benefits and can support the patient through the 
different funding streams, sign posting other local 
agencies that can provide support. 

The aim of our team is to work with the patient 
to enable them to remain in control for as long as 
possible; to improve their quality of life, even if the 
improvement is small; to help the patient navigate 
their way around complex health and social care 
systems and to act as an advocate for those who 
may be unable to advocate for themselves.

It is really important for us to be able to help the 
patient understand what their choices are, and 
achieve the patients and their families wishes in 
terms of their end of life care. Where possible we 
ask for feedback on the support we have provided. 
Our success is often measured by achieving a timely 
discharge, despite there being frequent difficulties 
around community resources. 

Community 
Care

162 
2018/19 
referrals
average caseload of  
32 clients per month   
Of the 162 referrals, 147 (91%) were for discharge 
planning. The remainder of the referrals included 
Day Care services and Living Well Centre and will 
have required information, advice, signposting and 
referrals to apply for an order under Deprivation 
of Liberty Safeguards. 

Visits completed (excluding SOS visits)

18/19 Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Fast 
Track 
visits

451 369 483 543 566 507 437

Other 
visits 141 162 92 52 7 50 18

Total 
Visits 592 531 575 595 573 557 455

418
18/19
referral total 

435 
17/18   
referral total
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Rowans Hospice provides a 1-1 
Bereavement Service that is accessible 
to any family member or loved one who 
has experienced the death of a significant 
person, who was cared for by the Rowans 
or one of its NHS partners providing 
specialist palliative care. 
Following an assessment by a clinical psychologist, we 
would offer specialist support from one of the clinical 
psychologists, psychotherapist, counsellor or support 
from our team of volunteers. 

Our volunteers are made up of those who have 
completed in-house training; counselling trainees 
on placement at Rowans Hospice and qualified 
Counsellors. All are supervised by our team of 
Clinical Psychologists. 

We also offer group therapy at the Rowans Living Well 
Centre – bereavement support is available to anyone 
that drops into the Living Well Centre.

The Bereavement service operates a ‘Bereavement 
Support Group’ monthly and a ‘Friendship group for 
the Bereaved’ monthly, both from the Living Well 
Centre.

Our adult and children’s bereavement services ensure 
each person, couple or family receives the appropriate 
level of support relevant to their needs and level 
of distress. All methods of delivery are designed to 
reduce distress and promote increased wellbeing and 
mental health for people who are facing one of the 
most challenging period of their lives.

Our bereavement service uses recognised measures to 
assess a client’s distress before and after 1:1 support. 
So that we can evaluate our input each client is given 
a Satisfaction Questionnaire. Group support offered at 
the Living Well Centre is measured by the numbers of 
people attending. 

Redesigning and delivering training for volunteers 
working alongside the bereaved has been a success, 
with the first key module now being delivered with 
good feedback from participants. 

Our main challenge is responding to an increasing 
demand on our services whilst maintaining the high 
quality we have developed.

There are 300 staff and around 1400 volunteers who work and volunteer at 
the Rowans Hospice, they are the backbone of the charity and the organisation 
would not be what it is without them. 
The staffing structure is made up of clinicians, housekeeping, finance, human resources and learning & 
development, facilities, marketing, fundraising and retail. Volunteers donate their time in all areas of the 
Hospice. Overall, our volunteers donated 140,536 hours of their time throughout the year and we are 
indebted to them for their dedicated support to the charity.

We welcome staff and volunteers into the charity by inviting them to an induction where they will meet 
with the Hospice Executive Group members. It is designed to feel quite informal and each director gives 
a brief description of their area of accountability.

Our staff and volunteers move through an in-depth on-the-job induction, which is conducted and 
guided by line managers.  Staff are invited to take part in a quarterly review process which is also led by 
line managers. Our line managers are offered a “coach to lead” programme of development and receive 
people management development from the Advisory, Conciliation and Arbitration Service (ACAS).

75
Meerkat 
Service 
referrals
2018/19

Bereavement Support

273 
referrals
average of 16 
on waiting list

Sophie de Bere talks  
about the Meerkat Service
The Meerkat Service and our team have developed and 
grown over the years. 

“I am proud to be a part of a fantastic team, both 
within the Meerkat Service and the wider hospice 
organisation. Working alongside such skilled and 
supportive colleagues has definitely been a significant 
factor in me staying. 

There are moments that are heartbreakingly sad, 
but over the years I’ve been privileged to witness an 
incredible amount of bravery and resilience in children 
and their families. 

We build unique therapeutic relationships with children 
who often maintain contact with the service long after 
our work has ended. Children tell us about exciting 
holidays, achieving high GCSE results, passing a driving 
test etc. 

It’s amazing to reflect on where that child was when we 
first met and their grief felt overwhelming; to then see 
them months or years later, happy and flourishing with 
strong aspirations for the future. 

To think that, as a service, maybe we were just a tiny 
part of helping that child through their journey is really 
special. Making a difference, no matter how small, 
to the lives of children and young people is always 
worthwhile and is why, 10 years later, I am still here.”

Clinical education 
and training
During this last year we have provided a 
diverse programme of clinical education 
that has been designed to educate our 
staff, our fellow health and social care 
professionals and our local community.
The benefit to the charity of providing the education 
programme is in collaborative working and building 
partnerships with local organisation including local NHS 
Trusts. 

We build relationships with different services, sharing 
knowledge and resources. This also helps to educate 
local people about our work and that we are a charity. 

This can often inspire people to work or volunteer with us, 
or to fundraise for us.

Our strategy has been to ensure that we provide education 
courses that meet the needs of the services within our 
community. We aim to explore commissioned education, 
tendering where we have the skills and capacity to do so.

Our Six Steps Programme has again proved successful. 
The evaluations have been positive, with constructive and 
helpful feedback too. We have also offered bespoke on-site 
training to those who struggle to release staff and it is this 
flexible approach that will enable us to attract opportunities 
in the future.  The continued development and use of 
technology will enable us to connect with other services on 
a virtual basis which can be time saving and more effective.

We have recently recruited a Clinical Trainer who will 
support our engagement programme and help to maintain 
an important programme of CPD (Continuing Professional 
Development) for our staff and volunteers. 

It is all about people! 140,536 
voluntary hours  
were worked  
across the charity 
representing a saving of £1,229,696 
based on the current living wage
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Our 22 retail shops and our online shop 
are a significant and important part of the 
Rowans Hospice Charity. Not only do they 
provide an income to the Hospice, they 
also advertise our charity and the services 
we provide within the communities in 
which we operate. They act as a brilliant 
community partner and often provide a 
contact point for those who wish to know 
more about our services. Our warehouses, 
the engine room of our operation, have 
doubled their efforts in the way they 
process donations. The planning and 
organising capability of our warehouse and 
logistics team, with 6 vehicles on the road, 
has greatly increased our capacity to fulfil 
orders to our shops. 

Retail Key Risks
The key risks are discussed below along with the risk mitigation steps:
Risk  Risk Mitigation
A fall in trading income levels: Retail Strategy 
 Key Metrics Review
 GA Procedures
 Performance Reviews 

Sufficient numbers of volunteers/staff:  Volunteer Recruitment Policy
 People Strategy 
 Performance and Appraisal Reviews
 Business Partner Reviews

Increased competition: Retail Strategy 
 Maintenance & Development Programme 
 Site Acquisition Procedure 
 Staff/volunteer training

Retail With regard to our financial outcomes this year, the 
Retail team has once again achieved an excellent result 
with a total trading income growth of 4.6% on the 
previous year, and on a like-for-like basis. This result has 
been gained by the sheer hard work and dedication of 
all staff and volunteer teams, without whom we would 
not be able to operate. In fact, our 700 retail volunteers 
donated over 84,000 hours of their time, which would 
equate to nearly three quarters of a million pounds if we 
had to pay the living wage to our volunteer colleagues!

Our fantastic supporters who donated their pre-loved 
goods throughout the year are so important to the 

“For the last 15 years or so, we always try to pop into 
the Fratton store each week. If you don’t pop in one 
week, they notice; as next time you are in they tell you 
they missed you and ask if everything is ok. It is also 
such a pleasant shopping environment, is bright, clean 
and everything is really good quality, which is great as 
I have often managed to bag some great bargains. Of 
course we know of many people who have used the 
hospice services in the hospice itself and within their 
homes plus are aware of the support that their family 
members have received, so it is nice to know money 
spent in here is helping fund a worthy local charity.” 

“It is a real community shop, 
due to the lovely, caring and 
friendly staff, who always 
make you feel so welcome.”

sustainability of our retail offering in the future. We 
are without doubt indebted to our donators and the 
generosity of all those who contributed in this way.

And in the year ahead there will be some interesting 
challenges and exciting developments with an aim 
to become 25 shops by the end of 2019/20. In 
fact, we have recently acquired a second shop in 
Petersfield, which will be an Emporium in its concept 
and where you may find a wonderful piece of bric-
a-brac treasure or maybe some quirky kitchenalia, or 
perhaps a wonderful piece of retro furniture – visit 
us when we open at the end of June 2019.

Income
Sale of Donated goods 1,833,739
Retail Gift Aid Income 900,241
Sale of new goods 36,881
Total Income 2,770,860

Expenditure
Operating Costs 2,045,284
Share of Hospice Overheads 84,686
Total Expenditure 2,129,970
Profit 640,891
Profit % 23.1%
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Marketing and 
Fundraising
The challenge that we have as a hospice 
is to educate those in our community who  
have no experience of our care, about our 
care. Many people think that hospices are 
all about dying. We disagree. Through our 
many different services we support people 
to live as well as they can with their illness. 
Right up to end of life our care is about 
helping people live every moment to the 
full in comfort and dignity.
As we are a charity, 86% of our running cost are 
raised by our community in a variety of ways. Rowans 
fundraising team manage a variety of events and raffles. 
We have Community Support Groups who organise 
fundraising events within their local area, and our 
community at large do a lot of fundraising for us. We 
have seen an increase in local businesses and corporate 
organisation engaging in fundraising through their 
employees which has been very encouraging.  
Our aim at Rowans is to always fundraise in an ethical 
manner. We are signed up to the Fundraising Regulator 
(FR) and Fundraising Code of Practise and we use the 
FR logo on our marketing material. We decided to go for 
the ‘opt-in’ option with the GDPR regulations. This has 
reduced our data base quite considerably but we know 
that those who are receiving our different mailings do 
want to hear from us. This has had an impact on some 
income streams but it has also reduced our costs. The 
challenge is to build our database with people from our 
community who want to play a part in the hospice in 
whatever way they feel comfortable.

The need to refurbish the hospice and the launch of 
the capital appeal has meant that we have to look at 
our income streams in a more critical manner. The 
Silver Jubilee Appeal has to generate additional income 
to that which is needed to operate our business as 
usual. We therefore needed to create a channel to be 
able to talk to as many of our community as possible 
every week. We agreed a media partnership with The 
News. Our strategy is to use this space to inform our 
community about all the services that we provide. We 
have invited our patients and their families to share 
their experiences of our care and they have provided 
us with some very heart-warming stories. Our staff 
and practitioners have also talked about what they do 
at the hospice and Living Well Centre and why it is 
important to them. 

This information has resulted in more people coming to 
the Living Well Centre to access and get the support they 
need, and has also encouraged people in our community 
to support our appeal. We are happy to report that we 
have had no complaints during this period.

“We believe that our approach to be 
authentic, honest and open to our 
needs is the best way to engage our 
community and create long term 
support. We can only provide the 
care that we do with the support of 
our community so the partnership is 
very real.” 

Debbie Hulbert, the owner of Charter 
Cutting Company in Emsworth, tells us why 
they have signed up to Rowans Corporate 
Challenge for the next three years. 
“My mum passed away at the Rowans in 2014 but prior 
to then, as a Salon, Charter Cutting Company, we would 
always fundraise for Rowans Hospice just because it’s 
local. Nothing beats fundraising for a charity that is on 
your doorstep because literally you can’t imagine how 
many clients we have had, probably even just in the last 
12 months whose either daughters, sons, themselves, 
their partners have needed to use or be supported by 
the Rowans. 

Our fundraising for Rowans started by taking part in 
Moonlit Memories walk. I did it on my own for a couple 
of years and then I managed to convince a couple of the 
girls to do it with me, then a couple more. Now a team of 
us do it. The stillness of the night, the fact that you chat 
to people and everyone is there for the same reason. 

We then started holding fundraising days in the salon, 
so it did feel slightly strange when my mum ended up at 
the Rowans. I had fundraised for it but never visited so 
I didn’t actually have a clue what it looked like or what it 
was about or how it felt. 

“Nothing beats 
fundraising 
for a charity 
that is on your 
doorstep” 

But literally from the minute we arrived the wonderful 
care was immediate. My mum, dad, sister and I, were 
made to feel welcome and at home. Mum had ovarian 
cancer and was there for six weeks. So during this time 
we managed to form a really good relationship with 
everybody from the chef to the volunteers. The chef 
would pop in and tell my sister and me what soup he 
was making that day. We even had space in the fridge to 
keep mums ice-lollies, which we could just go and fetch 
when she wanted one. I got to know the chaplain, Carol 
Gully really well and she has been absolutely brilliant. So 
whenever I go to the Chapel she always meets me and 
we have a coffee and cake together. When I was with my 
mum I recognised so many of my clients who volunteer 
at the hospice, they would come into my mum’s room 
and say ‘Hi’.

When mum passed away I said to my sister we have to 
fundraise bigger than we have ever done before, so we 
have continued to hold special days and raffles. So when 
I read the article in The News about Solent Design who 
does all the printing for Rowans and about the Corporate 
Challenge for the Silver Jubilee Appeal, I thought 
you know what we can do this. And it’s going to be a 
pleasure as I know we’ll be helping to ensure the amazing 
care that my family received, will be there for our clients 
and our community now and in the future.  
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Public Benefit
The Trustees review the strategy and approve the two 
year business plan developed by the executive team 
annually. In undertaking this review the Trustees have 
referred to the guidance contained in the Charity 
Commission’s general guidance on public benefit.

Financial Review
Overview
Rowans Hospice made a surplus of £226K for 2018/19. This overall 
financial result is very similar to the previous year’s surplus of £252K. 
However, underpinning this consistency there have been a number 
of large changes that have affected the charity’s finances. These have 
included improved investment performance (£191K gain, compared to 
£76K loss in prior year), fund raising for the hospice renovation project 
(£383K), and there has also been an expansion of charitable activities 
(£720K increase in expenditure), particularly hospice at home (£507K). 
The hospice saw a surplus during 2018/19 despite trustees approving 
plans to invest in charitable activities and thus run the charity at a deficit. 
In line with the plans to run at a deficit, expenditure has increased this 
year allowing the hospice to work on new and improved charitable 
activities. Offsetting this planned increase in expenditure was another 
year when the hospice received exceptional generosity from people 
leaving gifts in wills far in excess of what the hospice could have expected 
or budgeted for. This combined with the other items discussed above 
moved the charity from a budgeted deficit to a surplus for the year.

Expenditure
Total Rowans group expenditure increasing by £528K 
to £9.3 million in the 2018/19 financial year. Costs of 
charitable activities have increased by £720K, this is 
made up of increases in most areas of the Hospice’s 
charitable activities and is the result of trustee’s 
intentions to consume accumulated reserves and invest 
in charitable activities. 

The largest single cost to the Rowans is the operation of 
the 19 bed in-patient unit which cost £3.65 million for 
the year, the majority of this cost is the cost of expert 
staff including nursing salaries, doctors and consultants 
and multi-disciplinary team salary costs. £3.7 million is 
the equivalent to £527 per room per night. There have 
been few papers that have concluded on the standard 
cost of hospice care, however Marie Currie research 
from 2010 estimates that at that time it cost on average 
£425 per night for specialist palliative care, adjusted for 
inflation this would be £552 per night. 

Next year the operation of the in-patent unit will be 
affected by the planned hospice renovation project. 
Contractors have been selected and construction should 
start in Q2 of 2019/20. The plans will involve bed closures 
in the hospice, but the project will have a phased approach, 
so the in-patient unit will not drop below a minimum of 
12 beds.  In spite of this the Hospice does not expect 
the renovation to reduce running costs as we will try 
to maintain the level of care Rowans deliver through 
increasing target levels of occupancy, we will also look to 
redeploy some staff to other services to provide care and 
seek opportunities to learn and share our staff’s experience.

In 2018/19 there was significant investment into the 
Hospice at Home team to expand care provision and 
improve services, leading to increased annual costs of 
£507K. A proportion of this increase was the result 
of required investment into expanding the Hospice 
at Home team to allow the hospice to access a new 
funding opportunity that will fund a proportion of the 
cost of Hospice at Home care for people identified as 
Fast Track by NHS Continuing Healthcare. 

For care delivered to these patients we have received 
payments equal to 33% of the cost of delivering their 
care and £129K was received for the 7 months from 
September. We have found that the people we are 
caring for and the number of people have not changed, 
as we had already been identifying their need but as a 
result of the changes and investments, Hospice at Home 
has been able to significantly increase the length of time 
we provide our specialist services to those people. 

Cost of Therapeutic day care services have decreased 
by £85K, this is in spite of an increase in the number 
of people using the services. During the financial year 
Day Care services, where more focused nursing care is 
needed and is provided, having until then been delivered 
as a distinct and structured service in the main hospice 
building, were moved and this care is now delivered as 
part of the Living Well Centre services, sharing resources 
with the other Living Well Centre activities.  This has 
lead to more efficient use of resources, allowing for 
expansion of offerings at the LWC centre whist reducing 
costs.

The cost of non-charitable activities have reduced by 
£191K. The majority of this change was due to cessation 
of Rowans Care Agency activities. 

The activities of Rowans Retail were transferred from 
the Trading Company into the hospice at the start of 
2018/19 to gain savings and £79K of savings were 
achieved as a direct result of this move. Retail also 
invested into activities within the shops to make sure 
that strong revenue growth in recent years is sustainable.

Income
Total hospice income was £9.4 million in 2018/19,  
this is an overall increase of £238K compared to the  
previous year.

The lions share of the funds used by Rowans Hospice to 
deliver care in Portsmouth and South East Hampshire is 
money given and raised from the local community. £6 
million was given or raised for the hospice in 2018/19. 

The largest individual source of funding that the Rowans 
receives towards the care that they provide is money left 
as gifts in people’s wills. The amount that the hospice 
received as legacies in 2018/19 was £2.7 million. The 
Hospice relies heavily on gifts in wills to fund on-going 
care, this is quite a risky situation as legacies by their 
very nature can vary significantly from one year to the 
next. To overcome this risk, the hospice has set up a 
legacy risk fund. £1.5 million continues to be set aside in 
this fund, this is so that any years when legacies are less 
than budgeted this fund can be drawn down upon to 
fund charitable activities without needing to cut services. 

With the new funding for Hospice at Home from 
Continuing Healthcare, now £883K of Hospice income 
is from the NHS, this equates to 9% of total hospice 
income or 14% of charitable costs.

In September Rowans Hospice commenced a fundraising 
campaign to raise £7.5 million for the cost of renovating 
the hospice building, since the launch of the campaign 
£383K has been donated.

Rowans Retail generated £2.7 million of income for the 
hospice, a detailed P&L for Rowans Retail, similar to that 
reported in the Retail Management Accounts but having 
been reviewed by the auditors, has been included on 
page 11 of the trustees report. Rowans Retail shows an 
operating profit of £726K, after applying a portion of 
the shared overheads Rowans Retail has a net profit of 
£641K, or 23.1%.

Reserves
At year end the hospice held £14.2 million in reserves, 
of this figure £347K is restricted and £10.1 million has 
been designated for specific purposes (these designated 
funds are analysed in note 19 to the accounts). After 
accounting for restricted and designated funds £3.8 
million of unrestricted funds remain. This equates to 6.5 
months charitable expenditure based on the 2019/20 
budget, the current target is to hold 6 months charitable 
expenditure.

To set the target level of reserves there is an annual 
process where all identified risks are reviewed along 
with the plans for mitigation of these risks. Any residual 
risk or risks that cannot be mitigated are quantified and 
these amounts are added together to calculate the target 
level of reserves. The target level of reserves is designed 
to provide an adequate buffer that if an issue arises 
the trustees and executive team should be provided 
sufficient time to identify the issue and introduce a plan 
to overcome it.

To manage key risks, the Hospice and the trading 
companies, maintain a risk and opportunity register. 
These are regularly updated and are a standing item at 
each Board, sub-committee and Executive team meeting. 
These risks are fed into the reserves calculation. 

The key risks are discussed below along with the risk 
mitigation steps.
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Key Risks
To manage key risks, the Hospice and the trading 
companies, maintain a risk and opportunity register. 
These are regularly updated and are a standing item at 
each Board, sub-committee and Executive team meeting.

The key risks are discussed below along with the risk 
mitigation steps.

Rowans Hospice

Risk Risk Mitigation
Clinical risk 
aspects

•	 Clinical Governance framework 
and strategy review

•	 Appropriate staff addressing 
risk at forums and other 
meetings

•	 Critical incident review process
•	 Complaints procedure
•	 Reporting in minutes, 

communication, cascading of 
information  
at all levels

Hospice 
reputation and 
standing within 
the community

•	 Consideration of work and new 
funding initiatives

•	 Complaints policy

Insufficient 
funding

•	 Appraisal, budgeting and 
authorisation procedures

•	 Timely and accurate financial 
monitoring and reporting 

•	 Fundraising strategy in place
•	 Reserves policy
•	 Legacy contingency reserve 

Investments
The Hospice held £6.8 million in investments at 31 
March 2019. These had earned £189K of dividends 
during the year and had shown gains of £191K.

The investment portfolio was moved to CCLA part 
way through the year from Sarasin and Partners, this 
switch was after the completion of a competitive tender 
process. CCLA report in person bi-annually to the 
Investment Committee and annually to the Board of 
Trustees to present and discuss investment performance 
and outlook. They also provide the Hospice with detailed 
quarterly reports and monthly valuations. 

The Hospice holds investments across two CCLA 
products; firstly the Hospice targets to hold a value equal 
to its target level of general funds in the COIF Charities 
Ethical Investment Fund. This fund is a multi-asset 
investment portfolio that holds stocks, shares and other 
investment assets for the longer-term. The Hospice 
would hope not to need to drawdown upon these assets 
that represent its general funds.

Secondly, the Hospice holds funds in the COIF Charities 
Deposit Fund. This fund was selected to minimise 
downside risk as these investments are expected to be 
drawn down upon in the short-to-medium term. The 
COIF Charities Deposit Fund deposits funds across many 
Banks and Building Societies.  It has a credit rating from 
Fitch Ratings who have awarded it the highest possible 
quality rating.

The Hospice Investment Policy states that investments 
cannot be made into any assets that derive more than 
10% of its income from Tobacco. The CCLA COIF 
Charities Ethical Investment Fund holds an ethical 
stance, that exceeds this requirement. Details of all the 
exclusions from this portfolio can be found on the CCLA 
website. The CCLA COIF Charities Deposit Fund does 
not invest directly, as it deposits funds to counterparties, 
however, the fund is governed by the CCLA’s in-house 
ESG integration criteria and environmental, social and 
governance factors, so it is also considered to meet our 
ethical requirements.

Recognising the differing requirements for pools of 
designated and general funds held by the Hospice, the 
Rowans Investment Policy provides two different targets 
for investment returns; one for longer-term funds and a 
second for funds that will need to be drawn down in the 
near future. The long-term total return target is CPI + 3% 
over a five-year rolling period, the short term total return 
target is base rate +0.5%.over a three year rolling period.

In the final six months of 2018/19, after funds were 
transferred from Sarasin and Partners, the CCLA COIF 
Charities Ethical investment fund exceeded the target by 
1.88%. We have discussed returns on the shorter term 
investments with the Investment Managers and given 
the current plans to draw-down upon the funds in the 
very near future, to cover the cost of the capital build 
and planned deficits, along with the current potential for 
an unfavourable market turn and available investment 
opportunities, CCLA have recommended that we hold 
assets in the COIF Charities Deposit Fund which will not 
achieve the target return on investment.

Structure, Governance and Management
During the year and up to the date the accounts are 
signed the following Trustees were in post

Mrs E Emms (Honorary Chairman)

Mrs W Greenish (Honorary Vice Chairman,  
since 5 September 2018)

Mr Ian Young (Honorary Vice Chairman,  
until 5 September 2018)

Mrs C Hewitt (Until 21 June 2019,  
Honorary Treasurer until 21 June 2019)

Mrs L Dickens

Mr R Harrison

Mrs A Powell

Mrs V West (Until 5 September 2018)

Dr R Sutton (Until 5 September 2018)

Mrs E Dixon

Mr A Saunders (Honorary Treasurer,  
since 10 July 2019)

Mr G Page (since 5 September 2018)

Dr J Watkins (since 25 April 2019)

Dr J Hughes (since 25 April 2019)

The Rowans Hospice is a charitable company limited 
by Guarantee, registered in England and Wales, 
Company Number 2275068 and a Registered Charity 
Number 299731. It was incorporated on 7 July 1988 
and is governed by its Memorandum and Articles of 
Association.

Trustees, Trustees Appointments, Induction and Training

The Charity is governed the Board of Trustees, which 
is responsible for the strategic management of the 
Hospice.

Members of the Board of Trustees are also directors 
under company law.

Not less than six or more than twelve trustees are 
appointed by the members and, annually, one third 
retire, being those trustees who have been the longest 
in office.

Full meetings of the Board took place on six occasions in 
2018/2019. The Board is supported in decision making 
by detailed scrutiny and recommendations provided 
by the board sub-committees the Clinical Governance 
Group, Ethics Governance Group, Finance Audit and 
Income Generation Governance Group and the HR and 
Estates Governance Group. Each group meets quarterly 
in the weeks before the board meetings.

The Hospice board of trustees appoints Directors of the 
Hospices subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries
The Hospice owns 100% of the share capital of two 
trading subsidiaries, The Rowans Hospice Trading 
Company and Rowans Care Agency. Activity in both of 
these companies reduced significantly during the year. 

From the 1 April 2018 the majority of the activities of The 
Rowans Hospice Trading Company have been transferred 
into the Hospice. The leases belonging to The Rowans 
Trading Company have been transferred into the hospice’s 
name and Trading Company staff have been TUPEd into 
the Hospice. The Rowans Hospice Trading Company will 
continue to operate, continuing to deliver a small number of 
activities that had been delivered previously. These include 
the sale of new goods, retail gift aid and operation of the 
Hospice Coffee shops.

Rowans Care Agency ceased activity in July 2018 as 
activities were transferred into the hospice and staff 
were TUPEd into the hospice to take advantage of the 
new funding available from CHC towards the cost of 
expanded Hospice at Home care .
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Trustee Recruitment and Training
Trustees Recruitment and Appointment
All Members of the Hospice are notified in writing of 
Trustee vacancies. In consultation with the Honorary 
Chairman of Trustees, it will be decided if external 
recruitment will be pursued. This will be determined 
based on the current skills of Trustees and identifying 
shortages of skills/knowledge.

All candidates applying for the position of Trustee will 
follow a recruitment and selection process. Prospective 
trustees will be interviewed by a panel consisting 
of trustees and the Chief Executive. The panel will 
produce a short list of suitable applicants prior to formal 
interviews.

The recommendations of the Interview Panel will be made 
to the full Board of Trustees and any successful applicants 
will be co-opted until the next AGM, when members will 
have the opportunity to ratify the appointment.

Trustees Induction and Training
The Chairman of the Board of Trustees will ensure that 
an appropriate Induction Training Program is arranged 
and completed within three months of appointment.

The induction comprises formal induction training 
including: clarification of legal responsibilities, Charity 
Commission requirements of Trustees, strategic issues, 
governance issues, familiarity with the Memorandum and 
Articles of Association and all relevant induction material 
to allow Trustees to understand the Charity’s purpose, 
financial position and current issues.

Formal meetings are arranged for a new Trustee to 
meet with all Hospice Executive Group members and 
department heads. An appraisal meeting between the 
Chair and the new Trustee will be arranged six months 
after appointment.

Setting Pay
The Rowans Hospice Board has a dedicated 
Remuneration Sub- Committee, which considers 
remuneration across the Group and makes 
recommendations to the respective Boards. This Sub- 
Committee meets at least annually in advance of budget 
setting for each Company.

Remunerated roles within the Rowans Hospice are 
regularly benchmarked against a number of different 
channels; an Agenda for Change based scheme (NHS 
payment and awards scheme), other hospices locally 
and nationally and other business sectors. The Rowans 
Hospice observes the Living Wage for all employees 
across the group.

Relationships with Other Organisations
Part of the success of the service can be attributed to 
the partnership between the voluntary independent 
sector, the NHS and Social Care Services.

The local community based NHS Specialist Palliative 
Care Services and the Hospital NHS Specialist Palliative 
Care Team at Queen Alexandra Hospital (Portsmouth 
Hospitals Trust) and The Rowans Hospice work in 
partnership to provide a seamless service across hospice, 
hospital and community for the benefit of the patients 
and their families/carers. A high standard of care 
and specialist treatments are offered by a skilled and 
experienced multiprofessional team.

The level of collaboration is demonstrated by NHS staff 
being based out of the Hospice and a number of roles 
within the hospice being jointly funded by NHS trusts, 
Social Services and The Rowans Hospice.

Management Team
The Trustees are responsible for the overall management 
of the Hospice. To achieve this they have appointed a 
management team who are full time paid employees 
of the Charity. The Chief Executive leads the team to 
spearhead the Charity’s implementation of its objectives 
in a tough and ever changing health and social care 
market.

The Hospice Executive Group comprises:
Ruth White Chief Executive

P J Morey Medical Director

Erika Lipscombe Director of Clinical Services/Matron

Jenny Redman Director of Quality

Carol Milner Director of People Services & Retail

Mark Van Wijk Director of Finance

Theresa Bailey Director of Fundraising and Marketing

The Trustees have approved a detailed schedule of 
delegations to make it clear which decisions are reserved 
for the Board of Trustees and which can be made by 
board sub groups or members of the Hospice Executive 
Group.

Statement of Trustees’ responsibilities
Trustees, who are also Directors of The Rowans Hospice 
for the purposes of company law, are responsible for 
preparing the Trustees’ report (including the Group 
Strategic Report) and the financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice).

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial 
statements for each financial year which give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable 
company and group as at the balance sheet date, and of 
the charitable company’s and group’s net movement in 
funds, including income and expenditure, for that period.  
In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are 
required to:

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply 
them consistently;

• observe the methods and principles in the Charities 
SORP;

• make judgments and accounting estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent;

• state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards 
have been followed, subject to any material 
departures disclosed and explained in the financial 
statements;

• prepare the financial statements on the going 
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume 
that the charitable company and group will continue 
in operation.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate 
accounting records that are sufficient to show and 
explain the charitable company and the group’s 
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at 
any time the financial position of the Charity and enable 
them to ensure that the financial statements comply with 
the Companies Act 2006 and the Charities SORP.

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets 
of the charitable company and the group and hence for 
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection 
of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and 
integrity of the corporate and financial information 
included on the charitable company’s website. Legislation 
in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and 
dissemination of financial statements may differ from 
legislation in other jurisdictions.

So far as each of the Trustees is aware at the time the 
report is approved:

• there is no relevant audit information of which the 
company and the group’s auditors are unaware, and

• the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought 
to have taken to make themselves aware of any 
relevant audit information and to establish that the 
auditors are aware of that information.

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets 
of the company and for taking reasonable steps for 
the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities.

The Trustees’ report incorporating the strategic report 
was approved and authorised by the Board of Trustees 
on 10 July 2019 and is signed on their behalf by 

Elizabeth Emms 
Honorary Chairman
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of The Rowans Hospice
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of The 
Rowans Hospice for the year ended 31 March 2019 
which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial 
Activities, the Consolidated and Charity Balance Sheets, 
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, and notes 
to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in their preparation 
is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting 
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 
The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK 
and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s 
and of the parent charitable company’s affairs as at 
31 March 2019 and of the group’s net movement in 
funds, including the income and expenditure, for the 
year then ended;

• have been properly prepared in accordance with 
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice; and

• have been prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of 
the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit 
of the financial statements is located on the Financial 
Reporting Council’s website at:  
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.  
This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following 
matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to 
report to you where:

• the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of 
accounting in the preparation of the financial 
statements is not appropriate; or

• the trustees have not disclosed in the financial 
statements any identified material uncertainties that 
may cast significant doubt about the group’s or the 
parent charitable company’s ability to continue to 
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a 
period of at least twelve months from the date when 
the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The trustees are responsible for the other information. 
The other information comprises the information 
included in the Annual Report. Our opinion on 
the financial statements does not cover the other 
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly 
stated in our report, we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify 
such material inconsistencies or apparent material 
misstatements, we are required to determine whether 
there is a material misstatement in the financial 
statements or a material misstatement of the other 
information. If, based on the work we have performed, 
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact.  
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by 
the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the 
course of the audit:

• the information given in the Annual Report (which 
includes the strategic report and the directors’ 
report prepared for the purposes of company 
law) for the financial year for which the financial 
statements are prepared is consistent with the 
financial statements; and

• the strategic report and the directors’ report included 
within the Annual Report have been prepared in 
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required  
to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of 
the group and the parent charitable company and its 
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we 
have not identified material misstatements in the Annual 
Report (which incorporates the strategic report and the 
directors’ report).

We have nothing to report in respect of the following 
matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

• adequate accounting records have not been kept by 
the parent charitable company, or returns adequate 
for our audit have not been received from branches 
not visited by us; or

• the parent charitable company financial statements 
are not in agreement with the accounting records 
and returns; or

• certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration 
specified by law are not made; or

• we have not received all the information and 
explanations we require for our audit.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit 
of the financial statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the group in accordance with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of trustees for the financial 
statements
As explained more fully in the trustees’ responsibilities 
statement set out on page 20, the trustees (who are also 
the directors of the charitable company for the purposes 
of company law) are responsible for the preparation of 
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they 
give a true and fair view, and for such internal control 
as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are 
responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent 
charitable company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate 
the group or the parent charitable company or to cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the charitable company’s 
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of 
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has 
been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable 
company’s members those matters we are required to 
state to them in an Auditor’s report and for no other 
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do 
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than 
the charitable company and the charitable company’s 
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or 
for the opinions we have formed.

_________________________________________________

Anna Bennett  
(Senior Statutory Auditor) 10 Queen Street Place 
For and on behalf of  London 
Haysmacintyre LLP,  EC4R 1AG 
Statutory Auditor  
     /                 /2019 
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Notes
Unrestricted 

Funds
Designated 

Funds
Restricted 

Funds
Total Funds 

2019
Total Funds  

2018
£ £ £ £ £

Income From:
Donations and legacies 2  4,533,659  -    432,687  4,966,346  4,602,959 
Charitable activities 3  1,083,868  -    109,653  1,193,521  1,084,915 
Rowans Hospice Trading Company 4  128,434  -    -    128,434  1,904,422 
Rowans Care Agency 4  23,645  -    -    23,645  200,660 
Other Trading Activities 5  2,851,689  -    31,585  2,883,274  1,111,042 
Investment income 6  189,321  -    28  189,349  242,986 

Total Income  8,810,616  -    573,953  9,384,569 9,146,984

Expenditure on:
Raising Funds
Rowans Hospice Trading Company 4  4,745  -    -    4,745  2,062,731 
Rowans Care Agency 4  40,909  -    -    40,909  256,528 
Other Trading Activities 7  2,846,382  -    -    2,846,382  764,207 

Charitable Activities
In-patient care 8  3,654,409  -   34,167  3,688,576  3,507,718 
Hospice at Home 8  1,292,334  -   1,745  1,294,079  787,100 
Therapeutic day care services 8  509,197  -   127,464  636,661  721,837 
Community care 8  237,593  -    -    237,593  201,593 
Bereavement support 8  370,114  -   41,263  411,377  335,876 
Clinical education and training 8  162,642  -   27,000  189,642  183,908 

Total Expenditure  9,118,325  -    231,639  9,349,964 8,821,498

Net Gains/(Losses) on Investments 13  191,258  -    -    191,258  ( 73,656 )

Net Income  ( 116,452 )  -    342,315  225,863  251,830 

Transfer between funds  108,284  52,121  ( 160,405 )  -    -   

Net Movement in Funds  ( 8,167 ) 52,121 181,909 225,863 251,830

Reconciliation of Funds

Total funds brought forward 3,792,350 10,052,172 164,676 14,009,198 13,757,368

Total funds carried forward 3,784,183 10,104,293 346,585 14,235,061 14,009,198

Group  Group  Charity  Charity 
Notes 2019 2018 2019 2018 

Fixed Assets  £   £   £   £  
Tangible assets  12  4,604,290  4,552,172  4,604,290  4,494,131 
Investments  13  6,793,270  6,842,602  6,793,273  6,842,605 

Total Fixed Assets  11,397,560  11,394,774  11,397,563  11,336,736 

Current Assets 
Stocks  3,429  8,922  -    -   
Debtors  14  2,190,283  1,819,609  2,190,283  2,007,650 
Cash at bank and in hand  1,460,520  1,507,227  1,426,114  1,113,509 

Total Current Assets  3,654,231  3,335,758 3,616,397  3,121,159 

Liabilities 
Creditors: amounts falling due  
within one year  15  ( 816,731 )  ( 697,684 )  ( 898,687 )  ( 495,548 )

Net Current Assets  2,837,501  2,638,074  2,717,710  2,625,611 

Total assets less current liabilities  14,235,061  14,032,848  14,115,273  13,962,347 
Provision for liabilities  16  -    ( 23,650 )  -    -   

Total Net Assets  14,235,061  14,009,198  14,115,273  13,962,347 

Reserves 
Restricted funds  18  346,585  164,676  346,585  164,676 

Unrestricted funds    
General funds  19  3,049,028  3,248,452  2,929,240  3,259,642 
Revaluation reserve  19  735,155  543,898  735,155  543,898 

 3,784,183  3,792,350  3,664,395  3,803,540 

Designated funds  19  10,104,293  10,052,172  10,104,293  9,994,131 

 14,235,061  14,009,198  14,115,273  13,962,347 
 

Consolidated and Charity Balance 
Sheet as at 31 March 2019

On behalf of the board 
 

Mrs E Emms Mr A Saunders 
Honorary Chairman Honorary Treasurer

Company Registration Number:  2275068 
Charity Registration Number:  299731  
  
  
 
 

Consolidated Statement 
of Financial Activities 
(including Income and 
Expenditure Account)  
for the Year Ended  
31 March 2019

Financial Accounts

All the activities relate to continuing 
operations.   
Comparative figures by fund for the year 
to 31 March 2018 are detailed in notes  
19 and 26. 

The turnover for the charity (i.e. excluding The Rowans 
Trading Company and Rowans Care Agency) was £8.7m 
(2018 £7.6 m) and the net movement in funds in the 
charity was £0.2m (2018: £0.2m).
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Group Group
Notes 2019 2018

£ £ 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net cash provided by operating activities 21  ( 177,750 ) 215,126

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Dividends and interest from investments 189,349 242,986
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  ( 298,896 )  ( 312,480 )
Cash transferred to investments 240,590  ( 213,134 )

Net cash used in investing activities  131,043  ( 282,628 )

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period  ( 46,707 )  ( 67,502 )

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 1,507,227 1,574,729

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 1,460,520 1,507,227

      
The notes form part of these financial statements

Statement of Cash Flows and 
Consolidated Statement of Cash 
Flows for The Year Ended  
31 March 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2019

Group financial statements - The accounts 
consolidate the financial statements of The Rowans 
Hospice and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, The 
Rowans Hospice Trading Company Ltd (02300646) 
& Rowans Care Agency Ltd (08401725), on a line-
by-line basis.  Transactions and balances between 
the charity and its subsidiaries have been eliminated 
from the consolidated financial statements.

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 
2006, no separate Statement of Financial Activities 
or Income and Expenditure account has been 
presented for the charity alone.   

Going concern - At the time of approving the 
accounts, the trustees believe the Charity and 
group has adequate financial resources and is well 
placed to manage its business risks. The Trustees 
believe there are no material uncertainties that call 
into doubt the charity’s ability to continue. The 
accounts therefore have been prepared on the 
basis that the charity and group is a going concern.

 Fund Accounting
The charity maintains various types of funds as 
follows:

Restricted Funds - Restricted income funds are 
subject to specific restrictions imposed by the 
donor or by the nature of the appeal.

General Unrestricted Funds - General unrestricted 
funds represent unrestricted income which is 
expendable at the discretion of the trustees in the 
furtherance of the objects of the charity. 

Designated Funds - Designated funds represent 
amounts which have been set aside out of 
unrestricted funds at the discretion of the trustees 
to fund specific planned future expenditure or 
manage identified risks.

 

Income
All income is accounted for when the charity has 
entitlement, the receipt is probable and the amount 
is measurable.

Donations - Donations and all other receipts from 
fundraising are reported gross and the related 
fundraising costs are reported seperately in note 7 
to the financial statements.  

Legacies - Legacies are recognised when all the 
three criteria below are met:

a.  Establish entitlement – being when probate 
is granted and the will becomes a public 
document.

b.  Where receipt is probable – being named in a 
will makes a receipt probable.

c.  The amount is measurable – in practice this 
could come from estate accounts, cash received 
or correspondence from executors/solicitors 
confirming an amount to be distributed. 
Measurability will also be met where a reasonably 
accurate assessment can be made of the value.

Grants (Including Government Grants) - Grants, 
where related to performance and specific 
deliverables, are accounted for as the charity earns 
the right to consideration by its performance. 
Where the grant is received in advance of 
performance, its recognition is deferred and 
included in creditors. Where entitlement occurs 
before the grant is received, it is accrued in debtors.

Volunteers - No amounts are included in 
the financial statements for services donated 
by volunteers – with volunters contributing 
over 140,536 hours during the year, the 
amount involved is significant but difficult to 
quantify. 

1 Accounting policies   
 Company information   

The Rowans Hospice is a private company limited 
by guarantee incorporated in England and Wales.  
The registered office is Purbrook Heath Road, 
Purbrook, Waterlooville, Hampshire, PO7 5RU.

 Accounting convention  
These accounts have been prepared in accordance 
with FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard 
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 
102”), “Accounting and Reporting by Charities” the 
Statement of Recommended Practice for charities 
applying FRS 102, the Companies Act 2006, and 
UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice as 
it applies from 1 January 2015.  The charity is a 
Public Benefit Entity as defined by FRS 102.

The accounts are prepared in sterling, which is the 
functional currency of the charity.

The accounts have been prepared on the historical 
cost convention.  The principal accounting policies 
adopted are set out below.

Legal Status - The charity is incorporated as a 
company limited by guarantee having no share 
capital and, in accordance with the Memorandum 
of Association, every member is liable to contribute 
a sum of £1 in the event of the company being 
wound up.
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 Expenditure
Expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis 
where there is a legal and constructive obligation to 
make a payment to a third party and the amount of 
the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure 
is allocated to the appropriate headings relevant to 
the charitable activities; namely fundraising, In-
Patient Care, Hospice at Home, Therapeutic Day Care 
Services, Community Care, Bereavement Support and 
Education and Training. Where expenditure relates to 
more than one cost category, it is apportioned. The 
method of apportionment uses the most appropriate 
basis for each department. Reference should be made 
to note 8 for further information on the allocation of 
costs. Any irrecoverable VAT is included with the costs 
to which it relates.

The support costs, which include governance costs 
and are shown in note 8, support the whole of the 
charitable activities. Support costs are allocated to 
the charitable expenditure headings. The method 
of apportionment uses the most appropriate basis 
for each department. Support costs include people 
services, information technology, facilities, finance 
and governance costs  

Tangible fixed assets - Tangible fixed assets are 
included at cost, assets at below £500 in value are 
not capitalised.

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis, in 
order to write off the assets over their useful lives.

Land and Buildings 50 years or the   
 expected life of the lease

Fixtures and Fittings 5 years

Computer Equipment 3 years

Motor Vehicles 6 years   
     
Fixed assets are subject to a review for impairment 
where there is an indication of a reduction in their 
carrying value.

Any impairment is recognised in the Consolidated 
Statement of Financial Activities in the year in 
which it occurs.

Investments - Investments are valued at the mid-
market price. Realised and unrealised gains and 
losses for the year are shown in the statement of 
financial activities.

Stock - Stock is valued at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value.

Stock donated for resale is not included in the 
financial statements until sold because the trustees 
consider it impractical to assess the amounts. 
The cost of undertaking this assessment would 
outweigh the benefit this would bring to the 
accounts.

Cash and cash equivalents - Cash and cash 
equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held 
in Rowans bank accounts

Financial instruments - The charity operates basic 
financial instruments in terms of its assets and 
liabilities.

Financial instruments are recognised when the 
charity becomes party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument and derecognised when the 
company’s contractual obligations expire or are 
discharged or cancelled.

Basic financial assets - Basic financial assets, 
which include trade and other receivables and cash 
and bank balances, are measured at settlement 
amount. 

Basic financial liabilities - Basic financial liabilities, 
including trade and other payables, are recognised 
at settlement amount.

Leasing - Operating lease rentals are recognised 
in the statement of financial activities as incurred. 
All of the charity’s leases and hire agreements are 
considered to be operating leases.

Pensions - The charity contributes to the NHS 
pension scheme or, employees not entitled to 
join the NHS scheme are autoenroled into the 
Group defined contribution pension schemes. 
Contributions are charged to the profit and loss 
account as they become payable.

Critical accounting judgements and estimates -  
In preparing these financial statements, 
management has made judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the application of 
the charity’s accounting policies and the reported 
assets, liabilities, income and expenditure and 
the disclosures made in the financial statements. 
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated 
and are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events 
that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. The key areas that are deemed to 
be material for these financial statements are as 
follows:

Accruing for income derived from legacies where 
complicated issues surrounding the measurement 
of the group’s entitlement to income existed at the 
year end.

Expected useful economic life of fixed assets. 
     
    

2. Donations and Legacies      

Unrestricted 
Funds

Restricted  
Funds 2019 2018

£ £ £ £
Donations
- Rowans Retail Gift Aid Donations 863,360  -   863,360 794,778
- Other Donations 930,953 357,651 1,288,604 1,003,816
Legacies 2,725,186  -   2,725,186 2,753,471
Grant Making Trusts 14,160 75,036 89,196 50,894

4,533,659 432,687 4,966,346 4,602,959

In 2018 there were restricted donations of £63,858.     

3. Income from Charitable Activities      
       

Unrestricted 
Funds

Restricted  
Funds 2019 2018

£ £ £ £

NHS Contract 883,186  -   883,186 718,223
Social Services Funding 24,042  43,438 67,480 116,867
Domiliary Care 76,369  -   76,369  -   
Grants 82,406  37,500 119,906 190,382
Education Income 17,865  28,715 46,580 59,443

1,083,868 109,653 1,193,521 1,084,915
       
In 2018 there were restricted grants of £177,294.
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2019 2019 2018 2018
Trading  Co  

Accounts
Consolidated  

Accounts
Trading  Co  

Accounts
Consolidated  

Accounts
Income £ £ £ £
Turnover  128,434 128,434  2,558,712  2,558,712 

Less Intercompany Transactions
Charge for operating the retail gift aid 
scheme  -    ( 654,290 )

Income Excluding Intercompany 
Transactions  128,434  128,434  2,558,712  1,904,422 

Expenditure
Cost of sales  55,495  55,495  2,135,930  2,135,930 

Less Intercompany Transactions

Charges for services provided by 
Rowans Hospice  ( 50,750 )  ( 73,199 )

Expenditure excluding Intercompany 
Transactions  55,495  4,745  2,135,930  2,062,731 

Profit  72,939  123,689  422,782  ( 158,309 )

Total Contribution to the Hospice
Profit   123,689  ( 158,309 )
Charges for services provided by 
Rowans Hospice  ( 50,750 )  ( 73,199 )

Donations generated via the retail gift 
aid scheme  -    639,378 

Gift aid on these donations  -    155,400 

Total Contribution to Hospice  72,939  563,270 

4. Income from Trading Activities of 
Subsidiaries

The Rowans Hospice Trading Company Limited 
(02300646) operates retail outlets selling donated 
goods. The registered address of The Rowans 
Hospice Trading Comapny is The Rowans Hospice, 
Purbrook Heath Road, Waterlooville, Hants,  
PO7 5RU.

The Rowans Hospice Trading Company Limited 
covenants its profit to the charity. A summary of  
its trading results is shown below.     

4. Income from Trading Activities of 
Subsidiaries continued 
      

2019 2018
£ £

Net Profit/(loss)  123,689  ( 158,309 )
Amount distributed to charity as gift aid  -    ( 422,781 )
Net charge to the hospice  ( 50,750 )  581,090 

Retained in subsidiary  72,939  -   

At 31 March 2019 there were 0 shops (2018: 23)
2019 2018

£ £
Total assets  138,541  525,168 
Total liabilities  ( 18,776 )  ( 478,360 )

Funds (representing share capital and reserves)  119,765  46,808 
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Rowans Care Agency Limited      
Rowans Care Agency Limited delivers Social Care (08401725).  The registered address of Rowans Care Agency Limited 
is The Rowans Hospice, Purbrook Heath Road, Waterlooville, Hants, PO7 5RU.

The Rowans Care Agency was launched in 2016/17.  A summary of its trading results is shown below.    

2019 2019 2018 2018
Care Agency 

Accounts
Consolidated 

Accounts
Care Agency 

Accounts
Consolidated 

Accounts
Income £ £ £ £
Turnover  23,645  23,645  200,660  200,660 

Expenditure
Cost of sales  42,909  42,909  273,821  273,821 

Less Intercompany Transactions
Charges for services provided by Rowans Hospice  ( 2,000 )  ( 17,293 )
Expenditure excluding Intercompany Transactions  42,909  40,909  273,821  256,528 
Profit/(Loss) on operations  ( 19,264 )  ( 17,264 )  ( 73,161 )  ( 55,868 )

Other Income
Write off of debt by parent charity  19,264  -  164,083  164,083 
Profit/(Loss) for the financial year  -    ( 17,264 )  90,922  108,215 

2019 2018
£ £

Net Profit/(Loss)  ( 17,264 )  108,215 
Net charge to the hospice  ( 2,000 )  ( 17,293 )

Retained in subsidiary  ( 19,264 )  90,922 

2019 2018
£ £

Total assets  32,070  57,908 
Total liabilities  ( 32,069 )  ( 57,907 )

Funds (representing share capital and reserves) 1  1 

5. Other Trading Activities      

Unrestricted 
Funds

Restricted 
Funds 2019 2018

£ £ £ £
Support groups  71,387  -    71,387  95,186 
Rowans Retail 
Revenue  1,837,254  -    1,837,254  -   

Hospice initiatives  342,579  31,585  374,164  433,895 
Rowans Hospice 
raffles and lottery  591,201  -    591,201  576,144 

Other activities  9,268  -    9,268  5,817 

2,851,689 31,585 2,883,274 1,111,042

        
In 2018 there were no restricted Other Trading Activities.

6. Investment Income      

Unrestricted 
Funds

Restricted 
Funds 2019 2018

£ £ £ £
UK bank interest 
receivable  3,139  28  3,167  2,610 

Income from UK 
listed investments  186,182  -    186,182  240,376 

 189,321  28  189,349  242,986 
       
In 2018 investment income earned £9 of restricted income.

7. Fundraising Expenditure 
     

2019 2018
£ £

Fundraising staff  227,438  231,738 
Hospice events  85,322  80,819 
Support group expenditure  13,273  13,667 
Lottery and raffle operating costs  187,863  102,541 
Lottery development (canvassing)  -    102,370 
Investment  
management costs  27,287  37,507 

Other fundraising costs  53,155  40,437 
Silver Jubilee Appeal  57,769  -   
Rowans Retail  
operating costs  1,973,183  -   

Support Costs (note 8)  221,092  155,128 

 2,846,382  764,207 
        

Support costs have been allocated to fundraising this year to reflect the usage of 
these resources, as explained in the accounting policies in note 1.

4. Income from Trading Activities of 
Subsidiaries continued 
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8. Analysis of Expenditure on Charitable Activities and Fundraising 2018-19

In-Patient 
Care

Hospice at 
Home

Therapeutic 
Day Services

Community 
Care

Bereavement 
Support

Clinical 
Education 

and Training Fundraising Total Costs

Direct Costs  1,709,416  1,000,526  370,851  124,183  269,446  126,599  2,625,290  6,226,311 
Consultants and doctors  540,095  -    -    -    -    -    -    540,095 1
Physiotherapists  50,572  -    56,191  -    -    5,619  -    112,382 1
Social work team  127,507  -    3,400  37,402  -    1,700  -    170,009 1
Chaplaincy  23,023  1,570  10,988  1,570  13,605  1,570  -    52,326 1
Occupational therapist  35,306  -    14,689  -    -    1,546  -    51,541 1
Clinical support costs and  consumables  46,559  27,251  10,101  3,382  7,339  3,449  -    98,081 4
Premises and equipment  274,816  13,590  46,809  31,710  39,259  15,100  3,775  425,059 2
Catering  322,195  -    -    -    -    -    -    322,195 
Communications  110,253  51,368  13,782  2,506  10,023  2,506  8,770  199,208 4

 3,239,742  1,094,305  526,811  200,753  339,672  158,089  2,637,835  8,197,207 
Support Costs
People services  169,134  78,801  21,142  3,844  15,376  3,843  37,959  330,099 3
IT  59,937  51,058  42,178  4,440  17,759  6,659  27,649  209,680 1
Finance  88,275  61,076  24,387  13,904  20,078  14,007  87,868  309,595 4
Property and F&F depreciation  125,877  6,225  21,442  14,524  17,982  6,916  53,812  246,778 2
Governance  5,611  2,614  701  128  510  128  1,259  10,951 3

Total  3,688,576  1,294,079  636,661  237,593  411,377  189,642  2,846,382  9,304,310 

1 Apportioned based on staff work plans/usage
2 Apportioned based on square footage occupied by team
3 Apportioned based on number of team members
4 Apportioned based on direct costs

8. Analysis of Expenditure on Charitable Activities and Fundraising 2017-18   
 

In-Patient 
Care

Hospice at 
Home

Therapeutic 
Day Services

Community 
Care

Bereavement 
Support

Clinical 
Education 

and Training Fundraising Total Costs

Direct Costs  1,629,667  600,717  357,896  111,934  222,097  137,996  609,079  3,669,386 
Consultants and doctors  510,165  -    -    -    -    -    -    510,165 
Physiotherapists  42,734  -    52,990  -    -    -    -    95,724 1
Social work team  128,122  -    5,481  37,683  -    -    -    171,286 1
Chaplaincy  22,388  995  12,438  498  12,438  995  -    49,752 1
Occupational therapist  37,217  -    14,887  -    -    -    -    52,104 1
Clinical support costs and  consumables  41,854  15,428  9,192  2,875  5,704  3,544  15,644  94,241 4
Premises and equipment  213,424  10,554  129,701  24,626  30,489  11,727  18,763  439,284 2
Catering  226,609  -    -    -    -    -    -    226,609 
Communications  58,653  21,620  12,881  4,029  7,993  4,967  21,923  132,066 4

 2,910,833  649,314  595,466  181,645  278,721  159,229  665,409  5,440,617
Support Costs
People services  208,678  48,530  21,838  -    14,559  4,853  24,265  322,723 3
IT  118,544  27,568  12,406  -    8,271  2,757  13,784  183,330 3
Finance  124,999  46,076  27,451  8,586  17,035  10,585  46,721  281,453 4
Property and F&F depreciation  98,470  4,869  59,842  11,362  14,067  5,410  8,657  202,677 2
Governance  46,194  10,743  4,834  -    3,223  1,074  5,371  71,439 3

Total  3,507,718  787,100  721,837  201,593  335,876  183,908  764,207  6,502,239
 
1  Apportioned based on staff work plans         
2  Apportioned based on square footage occupied by team         
3  Apportioned based on number of team members         
4  Apportioned based on direct costs         
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Group Assets
Land and 
Buildings

Fixtures 
and Fittings

Computer 
Equipment

Motor 
Vehicles Total

£ £ £ £ £
Cost
At 1 April 2018  5,917,178  567,399  235,317  89,335  6,809,229 
Additions  172,890  48,054  22,045  55,907  298,896 
Disposals  ( 1,801 )  ( 14,768 )  ( 1,266 )  -    ( 17,835 )

Balance at 31 March 2019  6,088,267  600,685  256,096  145,242  7,090,290 

Depreciation
At 1 April 2018  1,544,944  455,463  184,851  71,799  2,257,057 
Charge for the year  140,077  49,511  38,429  16,728  244,745 
Impairment on disposal  1,693  -    340  -    2,033 
Disposals  ( 1,801 )  ( 14,768 )  ( 1,266 )  -    ( 17,835 )

Balance at 31 March 2019  1,684,913  490,206  222,354  88,527  2,486,000 

Net book value at 31 March 2019  4,403,354  110,479  33,742  56,715  4,604,290 

Net book value at 31 March 2018  4,372,234  111,936  50,466  17,536  4,552,172 

Charity Assets
Land and 
Buildings

Fixtures 
and Fittings

Computer 
Equipment

Motor 
Vehicles Total

£ £ £ £ £
Cost
At 1 April 2018  5,917,178  322,117  151,893  -    6,391,188 
Additions  172,890  74,779  35,825  73,443  356,937 
Disposals  ( 1,801 )  ( 14,768 )  ( 1,266 )  -    ( 17,835 )

Balance at 31 March 2019  6,088,267  382,128  186,452  73,443  6,730,290 

Depreciation
At 1 April 2018  1,544,944  236,907  115,206  -    1,897,057 
Charge for the year  140,077  49,511  38,429  16,728  244,745 
Impairment on disposal  1,693  -    340  -    2,033 
Disposals  ( 1,801 )  ( 14,768 )  ( 1,266 ) -  ( 17,835 )

Balance at 31 March 2019  1,684,913  271,650  152,709  16,728  2,126,000 

Net book value at 31 March 2019  4,403,354  110,478  33,743  56,715  4,604,290 

Net book value at 31 March 2018  4,372,234  85,210  36,687  -    4,494,131 

12. Tangible Fixed Assets     
  In the event that the Freehold Property ceased 
to be owned by the Rowans, there is a restrictive 
covenant in favour of the donor of the land. 
Land and Buildings includes Freehold interests of 
£2,455K, long leasehold interests of £1,924K and 
short leasehold interests of £24K.

9. Net Income

2019 2018
Consolidated net income is stated after charging: £ £
Operating lease rentals - land and buildings 383,567  397,171 

- photocopier  11,002  11,573 
Depreciation – owned assets  246,778  297,834 
Auditors’ remuneration - audit - charity  10,700  10,300 

- audit - trading company  2,150  1,126 
- tax advice  4,175  2,100 
- audit - care agency  1,075  1,200 

10. Staff Costs     

2019 2018
£ £

Wages and salaries  5,827,521  5,352,328 
Social security costs  436,125  419,583 
Other pension costs  398,935  313,791 
Termination payment  23,085  5,834 

 6,685,666 6,091,536
     

The average head count was 323 (2018: 308).  The average number of 
employees, calculated on a whole-time equivalent basis, analysed by function was: 
     

2019 2018
Number Number

Charitable activities 117 111
Cost of generating funds 11 8
Trading company 51 45
Care agency - 6

179 170

Number of employees whose remuneration fell within the following ranges:  
  

2019 2018
Number Number

£60,000 - £70,000 2 2
£80,000 - £90,000 1 1

 

Pension contributions in respect of employees earning £60,000 or more were 
£29,151 (2018: £26,565).     

Total employee benefits for Key management personnel £433,297 (2018: 
£422,385). 

Volunteers - No amounts are included in the financial statements for services 
donated by volunteers – with volunters contributing 140,536 hours (2017/18 - 
145,200 hours) during the year, the amount involved is significant but difficult to 
quantify. 

11. Trustees      
No member of the Board of Trustees received any emoluments during the year 
(2018: £Nil). Expenses amounting to £405 (2018: £188)  were paid to two 
Trustees (2018: two) covering travel and costs relating to training.  

Trustees donated £1,785 unrestricted income (2018: £3,315).   
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14. Debtors
  

Group    Group Charity Charity
2019 2018 2019 2018

£  £  £  £  
Debtors falling due within one year
Accrued legacy income  1,609,129  1,221,751  1,609,129  1,221,751 
Other debtors  356,764  446,212  356,764  394,841 
Pre-payments  224,390  151,646  224,390  80,600 

Amounts owed by group undertakings  -  -  -  310,458 

2,190,283 1,819,609 2,190,283 2,007,650

15. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year   

Group    Group Charity Charity
2019 2018 2019 2018

£  £  £  £  
Other creditors  256,722  198,638  246,423  132,704 
Accrued expenses and deferred income  404,288  252,057  399,988  225,589 
Monies held as agents  32,426  43,189  32,426  43,189 
Other tax and social security  123,295  203,800  118,043  94,066 

Amounts owed to group undertakings  -  - 101,807  - 

 816,731  697,684 898,687  495,548 
       

Deferred income consists of lottery payments made in advance £49,299 (2018 £46,798) and payments for 
hospice events that will occur in the new year £26,338 (2018 £16,391).    

13. Investments    

2019 2018
£ £

Fair Value at 1 April 2018  6,356,871  5,345,837 
Additions  4,264,964  1,084,693 
Disposals  ( 6,612,823 )  -   

Unrealised gains/(losses) on investments  191,258  ( 73,659 )

Market value at 31 March 2019  4,200,270  6,356,871 

Cash held in investment portfolio  2,593,000  485,731 

Fair value of listed investments and cash held at 31 March 2019  6,793,270  6,842,602 

Unlisted investment in subsidiaries  3  3 

Total Investments  6,793,273  6,842,605 

Represented by
UK listed investments  4,200,270  6,356,871 
Unlisted investment in subsidiary  3  3 

Cash held as part of portfolio  2,593,000  485,731 

 6,793,273  6,842,605 
     
The target level of free reserves were put into the investment portfolio at the start of the year. The hospice 
has plans that consume the remaining reserves in the medium term, as such investment advisors CCLA have 
recomended the remaining balance is put into their Charities Deposit Fund fund to offset risk of assets value 
fluctuation. 

The charity balance sheet includes investments totalling £3 in two unlisted subsidiary undertakings, The Rowans 
Hospice Trading Company Limited and The Rowans Care Agency Limited (Note 4).
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18. Restricted Funds    

The Violet Squires Love of Roses Bursary Fund 
was set up on 26 June 1996 with a donation of 
£14,000 from Mr D J Squire to fund nurse training 
by the payment of bursaries.  

The hospice is fundraising for the costs of 
renovating the hospice, the restricted fund 
represents the total raised to date to fund this 
project.     

The Meerkat service receives funding from Children 
in Need to part-fund the programme. 

Education Facilitator Grant funds the Six Steps 
program, where training is provided to care homes 
in providing care for people approaching the end of 
life.     

Rehabilitative Palliative Care Grant funds the 
development of a new programme of exercises 
and activity to be delivered within the Living Well 
Centre that rehabilitates and improves the quality 
of life of people with a life-limiting illness. 

Social Care Reablement Grant - Funds the cost of a 
reablement social worker in Portsmouth. 

The Aged Vetrans Fund uses Libor funding to 
support service vetrans as they near the end of life.

Harnessing Technology funding has been provided 
to support the ongoing development and widening 
footprint of the Future Planning Template.

Other restricted funds represent donations and 
fundraising given for specific projects.  
 

Balance  
01 April  

2018 Income Expenditure Transfers

Balance  
31 March  

2019
£ £ £ £ £

Group and Charity

Violet Squire Love of Roses Bursary Fund  14,009  28  ( 1,600 )  -    12,437 

Hospice Renovation  66,000  382,166  -    ( 160,405 )  287,761 
Meerkat program - Children in Need 
Funding  -    37,500  ( 37,500 )  -    -   

Education Facilitator Grant - Health 
Education England  -    27,000  ( 27,000 )  -    -   

Rehabilitative Palliative Care - St James 
Place Foundation/Hospice UK  18,279 -  ( 18,279 )  -    -   

Social Care Reablement Grant - 
Portsmouth City Council  -    43,438  ( 43,438 )  -    -   

Aged Veterans Fund Funding  9,576  53,091  ( 49,292 )  -    13,375 
Harvesting Technology NHSE Future 
Planning Project Funding  28,362 -  ( 28,362 )  -    -   

Other restricted funds  28,450  30,730  ( 26,168 )  -    33,012 

 164,676  573,953  ( 231,639 )  ( 160,405 )  346,585 
     

 

16. Provision for Liabilities      

Deferred tax liabilities is made up as follows:

2019 2018
£  £  

Accelerated capital allowances  -    23,650 

17. Operating lease commitments      
 

The following operating leases are subject to future commitments      

 
Group 2019 2018

£  £  
Expiring:
Within one year  271,752  346,623 
Between two and five years  763,247  661,151 
In more than five years  92,395  200,549 

 1,127,394  1,208,323 
       

£394K was paid for operating leases during the financial year by Rowans Hospice group (2018 £409K) and 
£394K was paid by the charity (2018 £84K).     

Charity 2019 2018
£  £  

Expiring:
Within one year  271,752  331,373 
Between two and five years  763,247  660,859 
In more than five years  92,395  200,549 

 1,127,394  1,192,781 
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Summary of funds 2018 
     

Balance  
01 April  

2017 Income Expenditure

Transfers 
gains and 

losses

Balance  
31 March  

2018
£  £  £  £  £  

Group

    Restricted funds  121,838  241,161  ( 198,323 )  -    164,676 

    General funds   3,980,387 8,905,823  ( 8,623,175 )  ( 1,014,583 )  3,248,452 
    Revaluation reserve  617,554  ( 73,656 )  543,898 

    Designated funds: 
Fixed asset fund  4,537,589  -    -    14,583  4,552,172 
Legacy risk management fund  1,500,000  -    -    -    1,500,000 
Service investment fund  2,500,000  -    -    -    2,500,000 
Hospice renovation fund  500,000  -    -    1,000,000  1,500,000 

 9,037,589  -    -    1,014,583 10,052,172 

Total funds (Group) 13,757,368  9,146,984  ( 8,821,498 )  ( 73,656 ) 14,009,198 
 
Charity

    Restricted funds  121,838  241,161  ( 198,323 )  -    164,676 

    General funds   4,152,393  7,314,023  ( 7,122,328 )  ( 1,084,446 )  3,259,642 
    Revaluation reserve  617,554  -    -    ( 73,656 )  543,898 

    Designated funds: 
Fixed asset fund  4,409,685  -    -    84,446  4,494,131 
Legacy risk management fund  1,500,000  -    -    -    1,500,000 
Service investment fund  2,500,000  -    -    -    2,500,000 
Living Well Centre fund  500,000  1,000,000  1,500,000 
Hospice renovation fund  -    500,000  500,000 

 8,909,685  -    -    1,084,446  9,994,131 

Total funds (Company)  13,801,470  7,555,184  ( 7,320,651 )  ( 73,656 )  13,962,347 

Balance  
01 April  

2018 Income Expenditure

Transfers, 
gains and 

losses

Balance  
31 March  

2019
£ £ £ £ £

Group

Restricted funds  164,676  573,953  ( 231,639 )  ( 160,405 )  346,585 

General funds   3,248,452  8,810,616  ( 9,118,325 )  108,284  3,049,027 
Revaluation reserve  543,898  -    -    191,258  735,156 

Designated funds: 
Fixed asset fund  4,552,172  -    -    52,121  4,604,293 
Legacy risk management fund  1,500,000  -    -    -    1,500,000 
Service investment fund  2,500,000  -    -    -    2,500,000 
Hospice renovation fund  1,500,000  -    -    -    1,500,000 

 10,052,172  -    -    52,121  10,104,293 

Total funds (Group)  14,009,198  9,384,569 ( 9,349,964 )  191,258  14,235,061 
    
Charity

    Restricted funds  164,676  573,953  ( 231,639 )  ( 160,405 )  346,585 

    General funds   3,259,642  8,711,286  ( 9,091,931 )  50,243  2,929,240 
    Revaluation reserve  543,898  -    -    191,258  735,156 

    Designated funds: 
Fixed asset fund  4,494,131  -    -    110,162  4,604,293 
Legacy risk management fund  1,500,000  -    -    -    1,500,000 
Service investment fund  2,500,000  -    -    -    2,500,000 
Hospice renovation fund  1,500,000  -    -    -    1,500,000 

 9,994,131  -    -    110,162  10,104,293 

Total funds (Charity)  13,962,347  9,285,239 ( 9,323,570 )  191,258  14,115,274 
        

The Fixed Asset Fund has been set up to show 
those funds that represent the net book value of 
tangible fixed assets and are therefore not freely 
available to spend on charitable actvities.

Legacy income risk is amongst the most significant 
risks faced by the charity. To manage this risk, the 
legacy income risk element has been removed 
from the general reserves consideration and is 
managed through a dedicated designated fund. The 
legacy income risk designated fund has allowed 
the hospice to more confidently budget legacy 
income and thus commit to increased charitable 
expenditure.

The legacy risk is reviewed annualy during the 
budget setting process and if trustees determine 
that the risk associated with legacies has changed, 
then the amunt held in the legacy risk fund will be 
changed.

The trustees have approved a five-year plan to 
invest in the hospice. This investment is forecast 
to spend £2.5 million over the five years, the 
Service Investment Fund set aside to fund these 
investment activities.

£1.5 million has been set aside to fund the 
renovation of the hospice

19. Summary of funds 2019
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21. Reconciliation of Net Movement in Funds to Net Cash Flow  
from Operating Activities 

   Group Group
2019 2018

£  £  

Net movement in funds  225,863  251,830 
Adjustment for:
   Depreciation charges  246,778  297,897 
   (Gains)/losses on investments  ( 191,258 )  73,656 
   Dividends and interest from investments  ( 189,349 )  ( 242,986 )
   Decrease/(increase) in stocks  5,493  ( 1,367 )
   (Increase) in debtors  ( 370,674 )  ( 433,769 )
   Increase in creditors  95,397  269,865 

Net cash provided by operating activities  ( 177,750 )  215,126 

       

22. Pension Schemes      
a. NHS Pension Scheme      

Rowans Hospice has an arrangement with the NHS that permits members of the 
NHS pension scheme to maintain their membership when they are subsequently 
employed by the hospice. The contribution of the hospice was 14.38% to the 
NHS scheme. The Hospice paid contributiuons of £248K in 2019 (£2018: 
£222K). 69 Members of staff paid into this scheme in 2019 (2018 -64)

b. Rowans Defined Contribution Scheme     

The charity offers to match employee contributions up to a maximum of 7% 
to any other eligible member of staff of the group choosing to belong to the 
group pension scheme with Royal London. Rowans contributions to the defined 
contribution scheme were £125K in 2019 (2018: £92K). 
195 members of staff paid into the defined contribution scheme in 2019 (2018 - 
157)

Total employer contributions for the group for the year ended 31 March 2019 
were £373K (2018: £314K)      

23. Related Party Disclosures      
Other than those transactions already disclosed between the charity and 
its wholly owned subsidiary, there were no other related party transactions 
which require disclosure. Details of payments to the management team and all 
transactions with the trustees are shown in notes 10 and 11.

24. Financial Instruments          
 

Group 
2019

   Group 
2018

Charity 
2019

Charity 
2018

Financial assets 
measured at fair 
value (a)

 4,200,270  6,356,871  4,200,273  6,356,871 

Financial assets 
measured at 
amortised cost (b)

 6,243,794  3,812,564  6,209,399  3,418,846 

Financial liabilities 
measured at 
amortised cost (c)

 ( 693,436 )  ( 493,883 )  ( 780,644 )  ( 401,482 )

Net financial 
assets measured at 
amortised cost

 9,750,628  9,675,552  9,629,028  9,374,235 

(a)  Financial assets measured at fair value cost includes investments held at fair 
value.

(b)  Financial assets measured at amortised cost include: short term deposits and 
cash in hand, trade debtors, other debtors, accrued income, legacies and 
amounts owed by group undertakings.

(c)  Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost include: trade creditors, other 
creditors, money held as agents and deferred income.

25. Capital Commitments
The group had capital commitments for the new renovation program for the 
hospice of £100K at the date accounts were approved.

20. Analysis of Net Assets Between Funds 2019

Restricted 
Funds

Designated 
Funds

General 
Funds Total

Group £  £  £  £  

Tangible fixed assets  -    4,604,290  -    4,604,290 
Investments  -    3,103,546  3,689,727  6,793,270 
Net current assets  346,585  2,396,460  94,456  2,837,501 

Total net assets  346,585  10,104,293  3,784,180  14,235,061 

Charity

Tangible fixed assets  -    4,604,290  -    4,604,290 
Investments  -    3,103,546  3,689,727  6,793,273 
Net current assets  346,585  2,396,457  ( 25,332 )  2,717,713 

Total net assets  346,585  10,104,293  3,664,395  14,115,273 
       

 

 Analysis of Net Assets Between Funds 2018

Restricted 
Funds

Designated 
Funds

General 
Funds Total

Group £  £  £  £  

Tangible fixed assets  -    4,552,172  -    4,552,172 
Investments  -    2,902,568  3,940,034  6,842,602 
Net current assets  164,676  2,621,082  ( 147,684 )  2,638,074 
Provision for 
liabilities  -    ( 23,650 )  ( 23,650 )

Total net assets  164,676 10,052,172  3,792,350 14,009,198 

Charity

Tangible fixed assets  -    4,494,131  -    4,494,131 
Investments  -    2,902,571  3,940,034  6,842,605 
Net current assets  164,676  2,597,429  ( 136,494 )  2,625,611 

Total net assets  164,676  9,994,131  3,803,540 13,962,347 
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Company Information
Registered Company Name The Rowans Hospice

Registered Company Number: 2275068 (England and Wales)

Registered Charity Number: 299731

Board Of Trustees: Mrs E Emms (Honorary Chairman)

 Mr I Young (Honorary Vice Chairman  
 until 5 Spetember 2018)

 Mrs C Hewitt (Until 21 June 2019,  
 Honorary  Treasurer until 21 June 2019)

 Mrs L Dickens 

 Mrs W Greenish  
 (Honorary Vice Chairman  
 since 5 September 2018)

 Mr R Harrison

                            Dr J Hughes (since 25 April 2019)

 Dr J Watkins (since 25 April 2019) 

 Mrs A Powell

 Mrs V West (until 5 September 2018)

 Dr R Sutton (until 5 September 2018)

 Mrs E Dixon

 Mr A Saunders (Honorary Treasurer,  
 since 10 July 2019)

 Mr G Page (since 5 September 2018)

Honorary Vice-Presidents: Mrs C Banerjee

 Mr I B Bott

Company Secretary: Mr M Van Wijk

Chief Executive: Mrs R White 

Director of Finance: Mr M Van Wijk

Medical Director: Dr P J Morey

Registered Office: The Rowans Hospice 
 Purbrook Heath Road 
 Purbrook, Waterlooville 
 Hampshire, PO7 5RU

Bankers: Barclays Bank Plc 
 PO Box 612 
 Ocean Way 
 Southampton 
 Hampshire, SO14 2ZP

Solicitors: Blake Morgan 
 Harbour Court 
 Compass Road 
 North Harbour 
 Portsmouth 
 Hampshire, PO6 4ST

Auditors: Haysmacintyre LLP 
 10 Queen Street 
 London, EC4R 1AG

Investment Advisers: Sarasin & Partners LLP 
 Juxon House 
 100 St Paul’s Churchyard 
 London, EC4M 8BU

 CCLA 
 Senator House 
 85 Queen Victoria Street 
 London, EC4V 4ET

Unrestricted 
Funds

Designated 
Funds

Restricted 
Funds

Total Funds  
2018

£ £ £ £
Income From:
Donations and legacies  4,539,101  -    63,858  4,602,959 
Charitable activities  907,621  -    177,294  1,084,915 
Fundraising  1,111,042  -    -    1,111,042 
Investment income  242,977  -    9  242,986 
Rowans Hospice Trading Company  1,904,422  -    -    1,904,422 
Rowans Care Agency  200,660  -    -    200,660 

Total Income  8,905,823  -    241,161  9,146,984 

Expenditure on
Raising Funds
Fundraising  764,207  -    -   764,207
The Rowans Hospice Trading Company  2,062,731  -    -   2,062,731
Rowans Care Agency  256,528  -    -   256,528

Charitable Activities
In-patient care  3,469,446  -   38,272  3,507,718 
Hospice at Home  759,160  -   27,940  787,100 
Therapeutic day care services  646,156  -   75,681  721,837 
Community care  201,593  -    -    201,593 
Bereavement support  305,326  -   30,550  335,876 
Education and training  158,028  -   25,880  183,908 

Total Expenditure  8,623,175  -    198,323  8,821,498 

Net (losses)/gains on investments  ( 73,656 )  -    -    ( 73,656 )

Net Income  208,992  -    42,838  251,830 

Transfer between funds  ( 1,014,583 )  1,014,583  -   

Net movement in funds  ( 805,591 ) 1,014,583 42,838 251,830

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 4,597,941 9,037,589 121,838 13,757,368

Total funds carried forward 3,792,350 10,052,172 164,676 14,009,198
      

  

26. Consolidated Statement of Financial 
Activities Including Income and 
Expenditure Account  
for the Year Ended 31 March 2018 
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